
 

 

 

Governance Committee 
 
Thursday 10 November 2022 at 2.00 pm 
 
Town Hall, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Grocutt  
Councillor Sue Alston  
Councillor Penny Baker  
Councillor Christine Gilligan 
Kubo 

 

Councillor Dianne Hurst  
Councillor Mark Jones  
Councillor Mary Lea  
Councillor Mike Levery  
Councillor Bryan Lodge  
Councillor Joe Otten  
Councillor Mick Rooney  
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Governance Committee is leading on work to transition to a committee system 
of governance from May 2022. It is a politically proportionate Committee which will 
be tasked with oversight of the transitional work and will approve the 
recommendations to be made to Full Council. 
 
The Committee will be outward facing. The Council will not be working in isolation on 
this project but will seek input from outside the organisation, ensuring citizens are 
engaged and are provided with opportunities to help shape this programme of work 
The Council will also be engaging the professional support of agencies such as the 
Local Government Association, the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny and 
Monitoring Officers from other local authorities which have recently transitioned or 
are about to transition to a Committee system. This will ensure the Council is 
supported through this period and learns from best practice to ensure that the 
system implemented in Sheffield responds to the needs of our City. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk . You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to 
Governance Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the 
Chair. Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information 
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.  
 
PLEASE NOTE: Meetings of the Governance Committee have to be held as physical 
meetings. If you would like to attend the meeting, you must register to attend by 
emailing committee@sheffield.gov.uk at least 2 clear days in advance of the date of 
the meeting. This is necessary to facilitate the management of attendance at the 
meeting to maintain social distancing. In order to ensure safe access and to protect 
all attendees, you will be asked to wear a face covering (unless you have an 
exemption) at all times when moving about within the venue.  
 
It is also recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test 
within two days of the meeting. You can order tests online to be delivered to your 
home address, or you can collect tests from a local pharmacy. Further details of 
these tests and how to obtain them can be accessed here - Order coronavirus 
(COVID-19) rapid lateral flow tests - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). We are unable to 
guarantee entrance to observers, as priority will be given to registered speakers. 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
If you require any further information please contact Jay Bell email 
jay.bell@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=632


 

 

 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA 

10 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
  
2.   Apologies for Absence  
  
3.   Exclusion of Public and Press  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public. 
 

 

 
4.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 8) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

 
5.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 9 - 20) 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee 

held on 06 October 2022 
 

 

 
6.   Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public. 
 

 

 
7.   6 Month Review of New Governance Arrangements (To Follow) 
 Report of the Interim Director Legal and Governance 

 
 

 
8.   Date of Next Meeting  
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on 08 

December 2022 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 6



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance by emailing david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 7

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

 

Governance Committee 
 

Meeting held 6 October 2022 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Sue Alston (Chair), Penny Baker, Christine Gilligan Kubo, 

Dianne Hurst, Mark Jones, Mary Lea, Mike Levery, Bryan Lodge, 
Joe Otten and Sioned-Mair Richards (Substitute Member) 
 

 
  
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Julie Grocutt 
and Mick Rooney.  
  

   
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude 
the press and public. 
  

   
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
  

   
4.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings held on 30 June 2022 
were agreed as an accurate record, subject to a typographical error 
at 5.2 of the minutes. It was the South West LAC (Local Area 
Committee) that piloted the first hybrid meeting, rather than the 
South LAC.  
  

4.2 Councillor Otten informed the Committee that Mr Alan Kewley, who 
attended the previous Governance Committee to ask a public 
question, had sadly passed away. The Committee sent their 
condolences to Mr Kewley’s family and friends.  
  

   
5.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

5.1 The Committee received the following public questions, prior to the 
meeting. These questions were summarised and responded to by the 
Head of Policy and Partnerships at the meeting. The questions 
submitted by the member of the public are published in full in these 
minutes.  
  

5.2 Questions from Ruth Hubbard 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 2 of 12 
 

  
  1. I note the point at 8.3 of the minutes of the meeting of 30th June.  I 

contacted both officers involved as soon as I saw the two reports, to 
identify my concerns and to ask the wording be withdrawn as 
otherwise I would feel I had to make a formal complaint.  The reports 
made claim to some “co-design” and that “communities steered and 
shaped the key building blocks” for changed governance 
arrangements.  I also contacted three other stakeholders to check my 
understanding, and they concurred with my view that the statements 
were grossly untrue.  
   
So, I want to thank the officers involved for reporting honestly on this 
issue and point of disagreement at the last Governance Committee, 
for acknowledging the language used was excessive, and for 
apologising.   
 
I also recognise the original statements made might reflect officer 
hopes and their understanding and expertise as to what would have 
been best approach and practice for the governance change 
exercise, but that the Governance Committee expressed no political 
will or leadership to adopt these approaches.  As well as rejecting 
meaningful and shared work on shaping the new governance 
arrangements, I also note that this Committee repeatedly rejected the 
suggestion that the first review of the governance changes be seen 
as a joint exercise with stakeholders.    
 
So [QUESTION] I trust and ask that there will be no repeat over-
claims further down the road that the review exercise is somehow 
about co-design, or about communities steering and shaping key 
building blocks?   
 

Our ambition is that community involvement is central to our 
culture and ways of working across the whole council.  We 
recognise, however, that this is going to be something that will 
require concerted work and effort over a period of time and is 
not something that we will have embedded in time for this 
review.  That does not take away from our desire to hear from 
communities about their views on the system and how it is 
working as part of the review. 
  
 

2. I note Item 7 of this meeting is on Planning for the 6 Month Review 
of New Governance and that this appears to be a verbal report.   
[QUESTION A] Does this even provide an adequate opportunity for 
members of the public and stakeholders to pose questions about the 
governance review plans?  
 
The Committee did, however, also receive an early report at its last 

Page 10



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 3 of 12 
 

meeting on 30th June on planning for the review.  Webcasting was 
broken for this meeting so it’s difficult to have a full picture of the 
discussion.  However, at para 5.4 a number of quantitative metrics 
were suggested to inform the review.  I apologise for being blunt but I 
thought the proposed metrics were wholly inadequate (I am happy to 
explain this to anyone who asks).   
 
[QUESTION B] Is the Committee interested in suggested alternative 
metrics that relate to its governance principles?  (I do not want to do 
the work this involves if you are not and as my experience over the 
last year has been of giving huge amounts of time, energy and input 
to little or no effect, and in trying to do justice to 20000 governance 
conversations in Sheffield.)  

The intention for Item 7 is to workshop with Members in the 
Committee meeting today to consider the scope of the review 
and the key lines of enquiry that we should be undertaking 
before agreeing the final scope and launching the review in 
November 2022 (10th Nov Governance Committee). We’d of 
course welcome insight from stakeholders and citizens ahead 
of the scope being finalised at the 10th November meeting and 
indeed, citizens and stakeholders are key to the review and 
we will make sure there are a range of opportunities for people 
to contribute throughout. 
 
  

3. The governance change exercise undertaken last year did not 
incorporate or address citizen and stakeholder aspirations and 
agendas for more democratic local governance under a modern 
committee system.  There was no evident will from elected members 
to discuss the local democracy Sheffield aspires to be, or to draw on 
all the ideas and expertise of citizens and stakeholders about the 
different aspects of this and the range of ways our local governance 
might be democratised and operationalised.  When raised in public 
questions or at the limited extractive consultation sessions, for 
example, most of these issues were then ignored or repeatedly 
rejected by the Governance Committee.  So the overwhelmingly legal 
and technical exercise undertaken was very limited, albeit involving 
much work.  Where additional work and discussion has taken place 
e.g. on co-chairing, and on member development, and on lengths of 
meetings -  whilst important these largely reflect the internal or 
insular, technical and procedural concerns of elected members and 
officers rather than those of citizens and stakeholders.    

So at this point citizen and community agendas for democratised 
local governance remain largely untouched and unaddressed, and 
are not evident or operationalised in the new council constitution. 
  
ONE of these issues is clarity about, and exercise of, citizen rights 

Page 11



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 4 of 12 
 

(including organisational and administrative issues and public access 
to information).  Or even the ways in which citizens rights might be 
extended. 
  
Whilst extending citizens rights was not addressed through 
governance change and remain extremely limited,  I have observed 
the following over the last four months: 

-          Great variability in practiees for the treatment of public 
questions (some people giving speeches, others being told 
to hurry up even with comparatively short questions, some 
members of the public participating in the meeting, some 
questions not even read out if people are unable to attend, 
delayed answers/written answers being promised even 
when relatively simple questions have been submitted in 
advance. 

-          Some late committee reports, sometimes even after 
deadlines for submitting public questions have passed.   

-          I have not seen the quality of answers improve overall 
as much as I would have expected to see (there are some 
notable exceptions) despite the shift to members of the 
public submitting questions in advance.  The issue of ‘not 
answering questions’ is also still there. 

-          Uncertainty by some chairs and committees when a 
Chair from one party answers a question and perhaps with 
other party members wishing to add to these answers.  
Some public questions turning into substantive committee 
discussions (but where issues are not on the agenda) – 
e.g. a 45 minute committee discussion at last Transport, 
Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee in response 
to a public question. 

-          Systems for receiving written replies – I have never had 
to not follow up for a written reply and this is now also 
evident in some LAC meetings – “I was promised a written 
reply in March and I have not received anything.” – this 
leads to public frustration 

-          Inclusion of statutorily required Independent Members 
of Committees via webcast, but no apparent equivalent 
access for members of the public to ask their questions 
(that could also help deal with some equality of access 
issues/extend reach to members of the public). 

-          The poor quality of webcasting (as also mentioned by a 
member of the public at the last Governance Committee), 
and the fact it sometimes does not work at all e.g. last 
Governance Committee and North East LAC 26th July.  

[QUESTION  As part of its governance review will the Committee at 
least consider a small dedicated look at this one issue – citizen’s 
rights and improving access to information and participation – even if 
it is within the very limited footprint of the citizens rights that 

Page 12



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 5 of 12 
 

apparently exist within the constitution - and to develop an 
improvement plan. 

  
Yes, elements of this are picked up in the draft scope that the 
Governance Committee are looking at today and, for example, 
public questions and accessibility of information about 
decisions have been suggested by Members as key areas to 
explore.   

  
  

4. Some other unaddressed citizen, community and stakeholder 
issues are much bigger and more chronically embedded in council 
structures and cultures e.g. this Committee has repeatedly rejected 
integrating stakeholder input in committee decision making.  And the 
expectation that all committees will use the limited toolkit to support 
decision-making is obviously misplaced – as far as I can see there 
has only been one mention in one committee of the toolkit and nor 
did this mention lead to a decision to actually use this.   
Clearly the council has ongoing issues in relation to its relationship 
with citizens, communities and stakeholders (who are sometimes 
critical) and for its own decision-making and local governance.  I 
imagine the Street Tree Inquiry will comment or make 
recommendations in this area and I note that this is also an issue for 
Sheffield Race Equality Commission.   
 
In the meantime – and since the governance change – we have seen 
the emergence of a number of difficult community-based issues.  
These include – but are not limited to – Hillsborough and Tramlines, 
the Rose Garden Café and the governance of our parks and other 
important community assets, the Norfolk Park Resident Parking 
Scheme proposals, and the implementation of Low Traffic 
Neighbourhoods.  These issues have emerged largely in the context 
of the systematic failure of this Committee to address citizen and 
community governance concerns through governance transition.  
One common issue that almost always arises across multiple issues 
is the exclusion and lack of voice, involvement and influence in early 
decision-making and in formulating plans. 
 
At some point elected members will have to acknowledge to a 
greater degree some of the chronic challenges it faces for local 
governance.   
 
In the meantime [QUESTION A] what happened to the Involve final 
report.  This Committee received a rather generic interim report but 
the last I heard the final report was going to come out for comment to 
a range of stakeholders who had participated in some consultation 
(for comment) and then the final report was to come to this 
Committee.  Where is that report?  

Page 13



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 6 of 12 
 

We accept and apologise for the delay on this – and I should 
stress that this delay has not been caused by Involve.  Involve 
produced a draft of the report within the agreed timescales 
along with a series of case studies which builds on an adds 
depth to the headline summary report that has previously 
been presented to the Committee. The issue has purely been 
limited officer capacity to support Involve to get the draft 
shared.  We will share the report with the stakeholders that 
contributed to it in the next fortnight and its content will be vital 
to informing the involvement/participation. 
  
 

5. [QUESTION B] How much did the Council spend on Involve and 
are the outputs and outcomes known?  I always felt this money – 
given the expertise in the city – might have been spent in Sheffield 
(especially now we have a community wealth building policy) but 
what has been the value of Involve to the city and its citizens and 
communities?          

 
Its around £25k.  As discussed at the last Governance 
Committee meeting, there is a huge amount for us to do as a 
council and with communities to ensure that we are genuinely 
connected to and involving communities in decision making, 
services and all our work. It is clearly unrealistic that Involve’s 
work alone – no matter how strong – will deliver this alone but 
as the paper to the June Governance Committee set out, if we 
want to see real change, we need to listen to our communities 
and we also need to bring in the best quality expertise from 
Involve and others to build our skills and build a culture of 
community involvement in SCC. 

  
  
6.   
 

PLANNING FOR THE 6 MONTH REVIEW OF NEW GOVERNANCE 
 

6.1 The Committee received a presentation from the Interim Director of 
Legal and Governance. It was explained that the presentation 
outlined a proposed approach to shaping the 6-month review. 
  

6.2 The Head of Policy and Partnerships, Laurie Brennan, presented the 
report to the Committee. The presentation would also be uploaded 
onto the Council’s meeting webpages, following the meeting. 
  

6.3 Members of the Committee were asked to give their views on the 
whether they thought the outlined approach to the review felt 
appropriate, whilst going through the presentation.   
  

6.4 Members of the Committee asked questions and made comments, 
and the key points to note were: - 
  

Page 14

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b25906/Item%209%20-%20Engagement%20Update%20Thursday%2030-Jun-2022%2014.00%20Governance%20Committee.pdf?T=9


Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 7 of 12 
 

6.5 In relation to the whole presentation, a Member of the Committee 
thought the approach felt very Town Hall centred. He mentioned that 
the presentation did not identify any best practice suggestions that 
demonstrated what the Council was doing in regard to public 
engagement. The work being undertaken in Page Hall was used as 
an example of how the Council should engage with communities.  
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships, Laurie Brennan agreed with 
the comments made. He mentioned there was a risk that public 
engagement was only seen in physical form, for example with public 
participation at Council meetings and public question/petitions, 
whereas the day-to-day interactions between the Council and the 
public was huge. Therefore, they should look to bring more of that to 
light. He also explained that Involve was looking at engagement 
across the whole City, and were looking at improving engagement 
internally.  
  

6.6 In relation to slide 6 of the presentation, a Member of the Committee 
asked if the review of Full Council was a separate formal review, and 
whether the Lord Mayor/Deputy were invited to take part in that 
review. 
  
The Head of Democratic and Member Services, Jason Dietsch 
informed the Committee that the Whips had been tasked with 
reviewing the operations and arrangements relating to Full Council. 
He confirmed that the Lord Mayor and Deputy were invited to take 
part in that review. 
  

6.7 In relation to slide 7 of the presentation, a Member of the Committee 
asked whether it was clear as to when Members were looking at 
constitutional rules, or alternatively, aspects that had been governed 
by political agreement. He mentioned how there was no rules that 
required the Council to have Group Spokespersons on committees, 
although stated how important they had been since the change to a 
Committee System.  
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships explained there would be many 
aspects, like that one, which will be identified in the review. He 
mentioned how it would be important for Committees to share what 
was working well and not, for the purposes of the review and so that 
other Committees could adopt best practice. 
  
The Interim Director Legal and Governance, David Hollis explained 
how the role of Group Spokesperson could be covered by both. The 
Committee could recommend that Groups Spokespersons were 
identified within the role of Chairs of Committees. 
  
Emily Standbrook-Shaw (Policy and Improvement Officer) referred to 
the review of governance arrangements in 2019. She mentioned that 
a key message following that review was not necessary around 

Page 15



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 8 of 12 
 

constitutional aspects, but about the Council’s behaviours and ways 
of working. It was important that this was considered in this review. 
  
The Head of Democratic and Member Services informed the 
Committee that the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) were 
considering the Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) for the role 
of Groups Spokesperson. Although they wished to understand more 
about the role. Therefore, the role of Groups Spokesperson could be 
defined as part of the review and fed back to the IRP. 
  

6.8 A Member of the Committee believed it could be useful for the 
Governance Committee to pre-negotiate cross-party agreements, 
through the review.  
  

6.9 A Member of the Committee suggested it be useful to have two 
separate rules, for whether the political make up of the Council was 
in a hung position or had a different political make up and Council 
was not in a hung position. 
  

6.10 The Member of the Committee raised that something that should be 
discussed through the review was the extent to which Committees 
were able to debate matters in full at Committee meetings and the 
role of pre-agenda meetings which included the Chair, Deputy and 
Spokesperson. 
  

6.11 In relation to slide 7 of the presentation, a Member of the Committee 
believed there were gaps around the timeliness of decision making. 
She also mentioned that the cost of the new committee system was 
an important consideration. Therefore, there should be references to 
the cost of the system, through the review. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships explained that part of the 
Transition to a Committee System piece of work, there was an 
appendix that outlined costs of the new system in more detail. He 
added that this should be brought back for the attention of Members, 
in the review.  
  

6.12 The Chair (Councillor Sue Alston) stated that it would be beneficial to 
have sight of the Council’s constitution throughout the review, so that 
Members of the Committee could reflect upon it whilst making 
recommendations.  
  

6.13 The Head of Policy and Partnerships mentioned that a wide range of 
people will be consulted through the review. These would include all 
Elected Members, Council Officers, Stakeholders and members of 
the public.  
  

6.14 A Member of the Committee suggested that the review also needed 
to look at the role of Task and Finish Groups and the relationship 
between Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and the other 

Page 16



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 9 of 12 
 

Policy Committees. He added that after the review, the functionality 
of the committee system needed to be re-enforced to Members and 
Officers. 
  

6.15 In relation to slide 8 of the presentation, a Member of the Committee 
stated that Members of the Transport, Regeneration and Climate 
Policy Committee, actively went out and engaged with members of 
the public, and worked with Officers to change how consultation was 
delivered.  
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships agreed there were many ways 
in which citizen engagement could be delivered. He mentioned that 
through the review, best practice from all the Policy Committees 
should be considered and adopted if necessary.  
  

6.16 A Member of the Committee referred to a previous comment about 
the ongoing work in Page Hall. It was stated that not many people 
knew what the Council was doing there, and how that piece of 
engagement should be fed in, so that different committees could 
adopt such best practice. 
  
The Chair mentioned the importance of Members sharing pieces of 
good work like this in the review. 
   

6.17 In relation to slide 8 of the presentation, a Member of the Committee 
asked when dealing with responses to public questions/petitions, do 
Elected Members get to check the responses, before Officers 
responded to members of the public. It was mentioned that in the 
Council’s previous system, Officers would usually formulate a 
response, then check them with Cabinet Members, before 
responding.  
  
The Head of Democratic and Member Services suggested that the 
process of dealing with public questions/petitions should be picked 
up as part of the review. 
  

6.18 Another Member of the Committee explained that he, as Chair of a 
Policy Committee, recently had questions submitted in advance, yet 
there were no draft responses provided. Therefore, agreed the 
process needed to be clearer.  
  

6.19 A Member of the Committee talked about meeting members of 
public’s expectations, when dealing with public questions/petitions. It 
was stated that a policy needed to be defined for when the 30-minute 
time limit for public questions/petitions was reached, when not all 
questions had been answered.  
  

6.20 The Interim Director of Legal and Governance, David Hollis 
suggested that part of the review, the Committee considered whether 
the public would benefit from having multiple responses to their 

Page 17



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 10 of 12 
 

public questions/petitions. 
  

6.21 In relation to slide 9 of the presentation, a Member of the Committee 
asked that with the Council currently been in a hung position, 
whether they needed to consider the new committee system 
functioning in both hung and not hung situations. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships believed these aspects had 
already been incorporated and considered, when designing the 
system.  
  

6.22 In relation to slide 10 of the presentation, the Chair of the Committee 
advised that Members highlighted anything they wished to be 
considered as part of the LGA (Local Government Association) Peer 
Challenge.  
  

6.23 In relation to slide 10 of the presentation, a Member of the 
Committee suggested the LGA Peer Challenge looked at how the 
relationship between Members and Officers needed to change, with 
the transition to a new committee system. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships agreed to feed this comment 
into the LGA Peer Challenge. 
  

6.24 In relation to slide 13 of the presentation, a Member of the 
Committee asked if there would be other ways that people could feed 
into the review, as not everyone will have the time to contribute to the 
whole committee sessions. 
  
Emily Standbrook-Shaw (Policy and Improvement Officer) advised 
there would be alternative ways for people to share their views and 
feed into the review. It was mentioned that one platform that could be 
looked at was citizen space. 
  

6.25 In relation to slide 13 of the presentation, a Member of the 
Committee asked if there were alternative environments available, 
that allowed people to contribute to the review. Having to attend 
meetings in-person, for the Committee, could discourage people 
from contributing. 
  
The Head of Policy and Partnerships believed this was a good idea. 
He also mentioned how this demonstrated inclusiveness.  
  

6.26 In relation to slide 13 of the presentation, a Member of the 
Committee suggested that other rooms in the Town Hall be used to 
hold evidence hearings and whole committee sessions, as part of the 
review. It was also stated that not everyone would feel comfortable 
attending the Town Hall or speaking online. Therefore, consultation 
could be taken to people in their communities. 
  

Page 18



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 11 of 12 
 

6.27 A Member of the Committee mentioned how the Council had to 
operate under a committee system for at least 10 years since 
implementation. Therefore, as part of the review, the Committee 
should consider how the system will be reviewed and how often it will 
be reviewed, within that 10-year period.  
  

6.28 Slide 15 of the presentation set out the recommendations for the 
Governance Committee. The Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance explained that he had added an additional 
recommendation, for Members to request that he produce a report 
on the more detailed arrangements for the review, to include scope 
and arrangements for engagement, to be submitted at the next 
meeting of the committee. 
  

6.29 The Interim Director of Legal and Governance clarified the 
recommendations to the Committee, which they would need to 
consider as follows: 
  
That Governance Committee (1) notes the presentation concerning 
the 6 month review by the Interim Director of Legal and Governance; 
(2) 
notes and agreed the outlined scope and discussions as the starting 
point for further consideration to define the scope of the review; (3) 
agrees to set up a working group of all Governance Committee 
Members to meet regularly and support the ongoing progress of the 
review within the proposed timetable; and (4) requests that the 
Interim Director of Legal and Governance produce a report on the 
more detailed arrangements for the review, to include scope and 
arrangements for engagement, to be submitted at the next meeting 
of the Committee. 
  

6.30 RESOLVED: on the motion of Councillor Dianne Hurst, seconded by 
Councillor Joe Otten: That Governance Committee (1) notes the 
presentation concerning the 6 month review by the Interim Director of 
Legal and Governance; (2) notes and agreed the outlined scope and 
discussions as the starting point for further consideration to define 
the scope of the review; (3) agrees to set up a working group of all 
Governance Committee Members to meet regularly and support the 
ongoing progress of the review within the proposed timetable; and 
(4) requests that the Interim Director of Legal and Governance 
produce a report on the more detailed arrangements for the review, 
to include scope and arrangements for engagement, to be submitted 
at the next meeting of the Committee. 
  

   
7.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

7.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held 
on 10 November 2022. 
  

Page 19



Meeting of the Governance Committee 6.10.2022 

Page 12 of 12 
 

   

Page 20


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting

